
AGENDA FOR

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE FOR PENNINE ACUTE NHS TRUST

Contact: Julie Gallagher
Direct Line: 01612536640
E-mail: julie.gallagher@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for Pennine Acute NHS Trust

Councillors: C McLaren (Chair), R. Walker, S. Smith, L 
Robinson, R Dutton, A Stott, N Briggs and D Heffernan

Dear Member/Colleague

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Pennine 
Acute NHS Trust

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute NHS Trust which will be held 
as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 26 June 2018

Place: Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall, BL9 0SW

Time: 10.00 am

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

Notes:



AGENDA

1  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR  

2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of the Joint Committee are asked to consider whether they have 
an interest in any of the matters on the agenda and, if so, to formally 
declare that interest. 

4  PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

Members of the public present at the meeting are invited to ask questions 
on any matter relating to the work or performance of Pennine Acute NHS 
Trust. A period of up to 30 minutes is set aside for public questions.

5  MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6)

Minutes of the meeting on the 13th March 2018 are attached.

6  POLITICAL BALANCE  

Members must consider if the necessity, that the Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute NHS Trust be politically 
balanced, be waived for the municipal year 2018.2019.

7  STAFFING UPDATE  (Pages 7 - 10)

Dean Hambleton Ayling, Associate Director of Workforce will provide an 
update on the staffing dashboard at the meeting.  

8  FINANCE UPDATE  (Pages 11 - 18)

Nicky Tamanis will report at the meeting.

9  PERFORMANCE UPDATE  (Pages 19 - 38)

Jo Purcell, Group Deputy Director of Strategy, will report at the meeting.  
Report attached.

10  UPDATE ON THE NORTHERN CARE ALLIANCE  (Pages 39 - 60)

Jo Purcell, Group Deputy Director of Strategy will report at the meeting.

11  URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Meeting of:

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute 
Hospitals NHS Trust

Date: 13th March 2018

Present:
Councillor Roy Walker (Bury Council)
Councillor Stella Smith (Bury Council)
Councillor Joan Davies (Manchester City Council)
Councillor Colin McLaren (Oldham Council)
Councillor Sarah Kerrison (Bury MBC)
Councillor John McCann (Oldham MBC)
Councillor Ann Stott (Rochdale MBC), 
Councillor Linda Robinson (Rochdale MBC), 
Councillor Norman Briggs (Oldham MBC)
Councillor Kathleen Nickson (Rochdale MBC)

Jack Sharp: Director of Strategy Salford Royal and Pennine Acute
Jo Purcell: Deputy Director North East Sector, Salford Royal and   
Pennine Acute 
Dr Shona McCallum: Medical Director, Salford Royal Pennine Acute 
NHS Trust
Moneeza Iqbal: Clinical Service Strategy, Programme Director, Salford 
Royal and Pennine Acute NHS Trust
Dean Hambleton-Ayling: Associate Director of Workforce Salford Royal 
and Pennine Acute NHS Trust
Ms Julie Gallagher: Principal Democratic Services Officer 

Apologies: Councillor John Farrell (Manchester City Council), 
Councillor Shaukat Ali (Manchester City Council), 

PAT. 17/18-18 APOLOGIES

Apologies were detailed above. 

PAT.17/18-19 DECLARATIONS OF INTERST

There were no declarations of interest.

PAT.17/18-20 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were no public questions.

PAT.17/18-21 MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 5



2

 
It was agreed:

That the minutes of the meetings held on 3rd October 2017 be 
approved as a correct record.

PAT 17/18-22 NORTH EAST SECTOR ACUTE SERVICE STRATEGY 

Jack Sharp: Director of Strategy and Moneeza Iqbal: Clinical Service 
Strategy, Programme Director, Salford Royal and Pennine Acute NHS 
Trust attended the meeting to provide members with a further update 
in respect of the North East Sector Acute Service Strategy.  An 
accompanying report had been circulated to elected members in 
advance of the meeting which contained information in respect of the 
following areas:

 Drivers and objectives for the NES Acute Service Strategy
 Impact of the Locality Plans
 Where we are up to?
 National guidance and learning 
 What should our evaluation criteria be?

The Programme Director reported that the primary focus will be to 
improve the quality of care as well as, continuing to address the CQC 
findings, whilst at the same time delivering on Healthier Together 
reconfiguration.

Questions were invited from those present and the following issues 
were raised:

In response to a Member’s question, the Director of Strategy reported 
that recruitment continues to be a problem in the Trust.   Vacancies 
exist across a range of disciplines and this is in part due to national 
shortages.  The way staff work and how services are delivered will 
need to change.

The Programme Director reported that the strategy excludes North 
Manchester General Hospital, the Northern Care Alliance will continue 
to have responsibility for the hospital until the transaction is 
completed. 
The Strategy will need to be consistent with the CCGs commissioning 
intentions in Bury, Rochdale and Oldham.

The Director of Strategy reported that work is underway in respect of 
communicating with the public with regards to the proposed changes, 
including the development of the northern care alliance, the 
disaggregation of NMGH as well as changes in each Borough in respect 
of the development of the Local Care Organisations.

Document Pack Page 2



3

Members discussed the evaluation criteria including which options are 
clinically sustainable; implementable; accessible; the right strategic fit 
and financially sustainable.

It was agreed:

1. Jack Sharp: Director of Strategy and Moneeza Iqbal: Clinical 
Service Strategy, Programme Director, Salford Royal and Pennine 
Acute be thanked for their attendance.

2. That members agreed that the evaluation measurable criteria for 
the North east sector strategy will be patient outcomes and access 
to care. 

PAT 17/18-23 CARE QUALITY COMMISSION UPDATE

Jo Purcell, Deputy Director, North East Sector attended the meeting to 
provide Members with an update in respect of the recent re-inspection 
of the hospital and subsequent inspection report issued on the 1st 
March 2018.

The Deputy Director reported that significant improvements have been 
made across every hospital within the Trust since its last inspection in 
2016 with 70% of the aspects of the services inspected now rated as 
either “Good” or “Outstanding”.

There are now no longer any services across the Trust rated 
inadequate and the overall Trust rating is “requires improvement”.

The CQC identified ten areas of notable outstanding practice and 
commended the Trust for the introduction and implementation of the 
nursing and accreditation system across all sites.

The ratings for each hospital and community service are as follows: 
NMGH, requires improvement; Royal Oldham, requires improvement; 
Fairfield General, Good; Rochdale Infirmary, Good; Community 
services, Good.  The Trust was rated as Good for caring as well as 
being well lead.

Responding to a Member’s question, the Medical Director reported that 
one of the biggest factors in improving the CQC Trust ratings was the 
transfer to a system of site management, with a Medical Director 
onsite.

PAT 17/18-24 WINTER PRESSURES UPDATE

Dr Shona McCallum, Medical Director, Bury and Rochdale attended the 
meeting to present an overview of the winter pressured faced at 
Fairfield General Hospital, Bury.  The presentation contained 

Document Pack Page 3



4

information in respect of the number of attendances, averaging over 
200 a day and performance against the A&E four hour target.

Dr McCallum reported that a Bury System Leaders Forum has been 
established weekly, as well as 7 day working and speciality in-reach for 
Frail Elderly patients. 

The Medical Director reported that the Trust had effectively prepared 
for potential pressures; all elective surgery for orthopaedics, Ear nose 
and throat had been cancelled thus enabled medical staff to provide 
additional support in A&E and on the wards.  

Most services have been operational seven days a week in order to 
deal with the increase in patient traffic.  The Medical Director reported 
that as a result of the effective planning put in place to tackle the 
winter pressures, NWAS diverted a greater number of ambulances to 
the Fairfield site.

In response to a Member’s question, the Medical Director reported that 
the winter pressures experienced at the hospital were in part due to 
patients attending with long term and complex conditions coupled with 
a number of usually healthy, younger patients attending with severe 
flu symptoms.

The Medical Director reported that a number of patients required 
ventilation, additional beds were opened to accommodate this as well 
as an extra 52 ward beds.

It was agreed:

The Joint Committee’s thanks be passed on to all the staff working 
across the Northern Care Alliance during this very difficult period.

PAT 17/18-25 STAFF UPDATE

Members of the Joint Committee considered an update report in 
respect of the ongoing staffing challenges within the Trust.  

The report provide an overview of the numbers of staff in post, 
agency, sickness and staff turnover.

The Associate Director of Workforce reported that the current vacancy 
rates for Medical and dental staff and nursery and midwifery staff is 
12.21% and 11.30% respectively.  The Trust spent almost £38 million 
on agency staff in the last 12 months.  The monthly staff sickness level 
is slightly above the national average.

 
In response to a Member’s question, the Associate Director of 
Workforce reported that there is significant shortages in some 
specialisms including emergency medicine.  This problem has been 

Document Pack Page 4



5

exacerbated by work visa changes at the Home Office (Doctors and 
Nurses are classed as a non-shortage area).  This has prevented some 
doctors obtaining a visa, this has affected 44 Doctors across the 
Northern Care Alliance.

The Associate Director of Workforce reported that a primary focus for 
the Trust is retention and recruitment.  As the Northern Care Alliance 
expands and becomes a single Trust, including Salford Royal this will 
create a number of career development opportunities within the 
organisation.

Responding to a Member’s question, the Associate Director of 
Workforce reported that the Trust is currently reviewing its staffing 
skills mix.  Trainee nurse assistants and physican associates who take 
less time to train could be able to assist in areas where recruitment is 
problematic.

In response to a Member’s question, the Associate Director reported 
that resilience training is being developed to assist staff.

It was agreed:

1. Further update reports in respect of staffing will be presented at 
future meetings of the Joint Committee.

2. The Associate Director of Workforce would provide updated 
information in respect of the percentage spend as part of the 
overall budget that is agency spend.

3. As well as clarification with regards to the high levels of 
management spend at North Manchester General Hospital

 PAT 17/18-26 URGENT BUSINESS

There was no urgent business reported.

Document Pack Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Staff Group Position FTE  Actual FTE Variance % Vacant
Add Prof Scientific and Technic 239.00 230.74 8.26 3.45%
Additional Clinical Services 1750.60 1687.51 63.09 3.60%
Administrative and Clerical 1909.42 1750.38 159.04 8.33%
Allied Health Professionals 610.45 594.59 15.86 2.60%
Estates and Ancil lary 772.06 718.18 53.88 6.98%
Healthcare Scientists 213.52 200.42 13.10 6.14%
Medical and Dental 857.77 748.15 109.62 12.78%
Nursing and Midwifery Registered 3203.68 2861.53 342.15 10.68%
Students 11.00 12.00 -1.00 -9.09%
Grand Total 9567.50 8803.49 764.01 7.99%

Staff 
Group Agency Locum 

Medics
Nurse 
Bank

Clerical 
Bank

Total 
Expend 
Temp 
Staff

Total 
Paybill

% Of 
Temp 
Staff

Trust 
RAG 
score

Apr-18 3,597 1,103 1,168 161 6,029 37,512 16.07% R
May-18 0 R
Jun-18 0 R
Jul-18 0 R
Aug-18 0 R
Sep-18 0 R
Oct-18 0 R
Nov-18 0 R
Dec-18 0 R
Jan-19 0 R
Feb-19 0 R
Mar-19 0 R
2018-19 3,597 1,103 1,168 161 6,029 37,512 16.07% R

Bank, Agency, and Locum spend

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

A
pr

-1
7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n-

17

Ju
l-1

7

A
ug

-1
7

Se
p-

17

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

D
ec

-1
7

Ja
n-

18

Fe
b-

18

FT
E 

%

Turnover Rates - Pennine Acute Benchmarking 

Acute - Large
(I-View)

Pennine
Acute

TrustWide- Month 1 (April 2018)
Staff in Post, Agency, Sickness and Turnover

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

M
a

y-
1

6

Ju
n

-1
6

Ju
l-

1
6

A
u

g-
1

6

Se
p

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

D
e

c-
16

Ja
n

-1
7

Fe
b

-1
7

M
a

r-
17

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y-
1

7

Ju
n

-1
7

Ju
l-

1
7

A
u

g-
1

7

Se
p

-1
7

O
ct

-1
7

N
o

v-
1

7

D
e

c-
17

Ja
n

-1
8

Fe
b

-1
8

M
a

r-
18

A
p

r-
1

8

Pennine Acute Monthly Sickness Absence % (FTE)

Pennine Acute

Average

UCL

LCL

Target

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 7
A

genda Item
 7



2

Staff Group Position FTE Actual FTE Variance % Vacant
Add Prof Scientific and Technic 29.73 27.24 2.49 8.38%
Additional Clinical Services 505.13 476.59 28.54 5.65%
Administrative and Clerical 169.51 156.41 13.10 7.73%
Allied Health Professionals 71.60 75.32 -3.72 -5.20%
Estates and Ancil lary 21.83 19.50 2.33 10.68%
Healthcare Scientists 47.74 41.60 6.14 12.87%
Medical and Dental 278.75 228.85 49.90 17.90%
Nursing and Midwifery Registered 1093.95 945.72 148.23 13.55%
Students 2.00 3.00 -1.00 -50.00%
352 North Manchester CO Total 2220.24 1974.22 246.02 11.08%
Pennine Acute 9567.50 8803.49 764.01 7.99%

North Manchester Care Organisation- Month 1 (April 2018)
Staff in Post, Agency, Sickness and Turnover

0.00%
1.00%
2.00%
3.00%
4.00%
5.00%
6.00%
7.00%
8.00%

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n-

17

Ju
l-1

7

Au
g-

17

Se
p-

17

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

De
c-

17

Ja
n-

18

Fe
b-

18

M
ar

-1
8

Ap
r-1

8

Ab
se

nc
e 

FT
E 

%

North Manchester CO - Monthly Sickness Absence % 
(FTE)

North Manchester Pennine£24,898

£273,832

£950,378

£333,234

£0

£100,000

£200,000

£300,000

£400,000

£500,000

£600,000

£700,000

£800,000

£900,000

£1,000,000

Agency Spend for North  Manchester CO - April - 2018

352 Division of Medicine
(O)

352 Division of Surgery
(N)

352 NM Integrated
Medicine (N)

352 Women & Children's
Division (N)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 8



3

Staff Group Position FTE Actual FTE Variance % Vacant
Add Prof Scientific and Technic 23.50 29.22 -5.72 -24.34%
Additional Clinical Services 541.86 544.84 -2.98 -0.55%
Administrative and Clerical 205.64 193.72 11.92 5.79%
Allied Health Professionals 305.23 295.43 9.80 3.21%
Estates and Ancil lary 7.13 6.98 0.15 2.05%
Healthcare Scientists 2.80 1.80 1.00 35.71%
Medical and Dental 162.84 133.27 29.57 18.16%
Nursing and Midwifery Registered 869.61 772.97 96.64 11.11%
Students 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.00%
352 Bury & Rochdale CO Total 2120.61 1980.23 140.38 6.62%
Pennine Acute 9567.50 8803.49 764.01 7.99%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

M
a

y-
1

6
Ju

n
-1

6
Ju

l-
1

6
A

u
g

-1
6

S
ep

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6
D

e
c-

1
6

Ja
n

-1
7

F
eb

-1
7

M
a

r-
1

7
A

p
r-

1
7

M
a

y-
1

7
Ju

n
-1

7
Ju

l-
1

7
A

u
g

-1
7

S
ep

-1
7

O
ct

-1
7

N
o

v-
1

7
D

e
c-

1
7

Ja
n

-1
8

F
eb

-1
8

M
a

r-
1

8
A

p
r-

1
8

Bury & Rochdale CO- Monthly Sickness Absence % (FTE)

Bury & Rochdale

Average

UCL

LCL

Target

£510,914

£97,082

£189,039

£0

£100,000

£200,000

£300,000

£400,000

£500,000

£600,000

Agency Spend for Bury & Rochdale CO - April - 2018

352 Bury Integrated Care
(BR)

352 Division of Medicine
(O)

352 HMR Integrated Care
(BR)

Bury and Rochdale Care Organisation- Month 1 (April 2018)
Staff in Post, Agency, Sickness and Turnover

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 9



4

Staff Group Position FTE Actual FTE Variance % Vacant
Add Prof Scientific and Technic 31.18 31.64 -0.46 -1.48%
Additional Clinical Services 450.51 415.71 34.80 7.73%
Administrative and Clerical 159.19 151.29 7.90 4.96%
Allied Health Professionals 8.44 11.20 -2.76 -32.70%
Estates and Ancil lary 10.68 7.13 3.55 33.21%
Medical and Dental 316.68 293.48 23.21 7.33%
Nursing and Midwifery Registered 1051.45 967.74 83.71 7.96%
Students 7.00 7.00 0.00 0.00%
352 Royal Oldham CO Total 2035.13 1885.19 149.94 7.37%
Pennine Acute 9567.50 8803.49 764.01 7.99%

Royal Oldham Care Organisation- Month 1 (April 2018)
Staff in Post, Agency, Sickness and Turnover

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n-

16

Ju
l-1

6

Au
g-

16

Se
p-

16

O
ct

-1
6

N
ov

-1
6

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n-

17

Fe
b-

17

M
ar

-1
7

Ap
r-

17

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n-

17

Ju
l-1

7

Au
g-

17

Se
p-

17

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

D
ec

-1
7

Ja
n-

18

Fe
b-

18

M
ar

-1
8

Ap
r-

18

Royal Oldham CO- Monthly Sickness Absence % (FTE)

Royal Oldham

Average

UCL

LCL

Target

£310,039

£363,594

£32,572

£245,554

£0

£50,000

£100,000

£150,000

£200,000

£250,000

£300,000

£350,000

£400,000

Agency Spend for Royal Oldham CO - April - 2018

352 Division of Medicine
(O)

352 Division of Surgery
(O)

352 Hosted Service (O)

352 Women & Children's
Division (O)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 10



Northern Care Alliance 

2018/19 Financial Overview – Pennine Acute 

Hospitals NHS Trust

Saving lives, Improving lives 

by delivering highly reliable services, at scale, which are trusted, 

connected and pioneering

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 11
A

genda Item
 8



Page 2

What the presentation covers

�Overview of financial position and financial plan for  

Pennine Acute NHS Trust

�NHSI oversight 

�Process to reach a more balanced position

�Capital programme

(The presentation is technical but Nicky Tamanis, Deputy 

Director of Finance will be presenting and will be able to 

clarify and answer any questions)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 12



Page 3

2017/18 Outturn
2017/18 £m

Income 661.9 90% of income relates to patient care activities 

5% increase from 2016/17

Expenditure:

Pay (440.2)

Pay costs are 64% of the total costs

7.5% increase from 2016//17

Non Pay (242.9) 23% relates to drugs / 12% CNST

Total Expenditure (683.1)

Operating Surplus / (deficit) (21.2)

Finance Costs (2.0)

Surplus / (deficit) for the financial year (23.2)

Public Dividend Capital payable (8.1) Dividend paid to DH to reflect the public equity 

invested in the NHS Trust

Retained surplus / (deficit) (31.3)

Impairments 0.7

Donated assets adjustment 0.2

Reported NHS Financial Performance (30.4) Control Total – (£11.3m)

Forecast outturn – (£41.0m)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 13



Page 4

2018/19 Financial Plan – Key Headlines

2018/19 2017/18

Deficit (£68.9m) (£30.4m)

Control Total £8.6m (£11.3m)

BCLC £21.1m £24.6m

Agency Spend £34.9m £44.1m

Agency Cap £20.0m £23.1m

Year end cash £3.0m £11.4m

Revenue Support Loan £74.7m £28.2m

Capital Investment £32.5m £19.7m

Risk Rating 4 4

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 14



Page 5

2018/19 Financial Plan (income and expenditure)

2018/19 £m

Income 630.5

Expenditure:

Pay (446.5)

Non Pay (243.1)

Total Expenditure (689.6)

Operating Surplus / (deficit) (59.1)

Finance Costs (2.7)

Other gains and (losses) including disposal of assets (0.2)

Surplus / (deficit) for the financial year (62.0)

Public Dividend Capital payable (7.0)

Retained surplus / (deficit) (69.0)

Impairments 0.0

Donated assets adjustment 0.1

Reported NHS Financial Performance (68.9)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 15



Page 6

2018/19 – 5 Year Capital Programme assumptions

1. Available internal resources are used to finance replacement/ 

lifecycling capital spend 

2. Annual depreciation is assumed to be at the same level from 

2018/19 (new replacement spend maintains the level of “base” 

depreciation) plus the impact of depreciation from new capital 

investment in future years

3. Capital loans required for spend over and above replacement 

/lifecycling requirements e.g. Intermediate Care Facility 

extension, NMGH/ROH development (Energy schemes) & EPR

4. PDC is available for the Healthier Together scheme(s)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 16



Page 7

Capital – 5 Year Capital Programme

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 17



Page 8

2018/19 Financial Plan 
� A&E 4 Hour Target: Trusts will be expected to meet 90% by September 2018, and return to 95% by March 2019. 

� RTT: the expectation is that the waiting list should not be any higher in March 2019 than in March 2018, 

alongside the expectation to halve the number of patients waiting 52 weeks in the same period. 

� The Sustainability and Transformation Fund is to become the Provider Sustainability Fund (PSF), with total 

funding of £2.45bn (up from £1.8bn currently). Access to 30% of the fund remains linked to A&E performance. 

A new £400m commissioner sustainability fund (CSF) will also be introduced to enable CCGs to return to in-year 

financial balance.

� The eight shadow Accountable Care System sites and two devolved health and care systems are now to be 

known as Integrated Care Systems (ICS). ICSs are expected to prepare a single system operating plan and to 

work within a system control total. They are expected to move to a more ‘autonomous’ regulatory relationship 

with NHS England and NHS Improvement over time. 

� There will be no additional winter funding in 2018/19. Systems are required to produce a winter demand and 

capacity plan with actions and proposed outcomes. 

� The two-year National Tariff is unchanged, with local systems encouraged to consider local payment reform in 

certain areas. 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 18



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

1

Operational Plan for 2018/19 

Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust

Part of the Northern Care Alliance 

Document Pack Page 19 Agenda Item 9



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

2

Document Pack Page 20



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

3

1. INTRODUCTION AND CONTEXT 

1.1 The Northern Care Alliance NHS Group 

In April 2016 the chairman Mr Jim Potter and CEO, Sir David Dalton, of Salford Royal NHS Foundation 
Trust (SRFT), were invited to assume operational management of Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 
(PAT). This arrangement was formalised though the establishment of a management agreement in 
April 2017, which paved the way for the establishment of a Group arrangement – The Northern Care 
Alliance. 

Both Trusts have delegated their functions to a ‘Committees in Common’ which operates the new 
‘Group’ arrangement, known as the Northern Care Alliance NHS Group (NCA).  The NCA brings 
together over 17,000 staff, 2,000 beds and serves a population of over 1 million people across our 
communities through four ‘Care Organisations’:  Salford, North Manchester, Oldham and Bury & 
Rochdale . 

Our four Care Organisations (CO) are responsible for delivering safe, high quality and reliable care to 
the local communities they serve. Each has a leadership team consisting of a Managing Director, 
Medical Director, Director of Nursing and Finance Director, one of which is appointed as Chief 
Officer to lead the team.  New teams have been appointed in each Care Organisation with 
operational responsibilities given to divisional directors and supported by clinical directors and 
directorate managers. 

These new local arrangements place the emphasis for operational management where it matters - in 
each hospital and locality. This enables Care Organisations to deliver tailored local plans, whilst 
working together to achieve the common Northern Care Alliance mission and shared objectives. 

The Northern Care Alliance

Governance across the Northern Care Alliance is provided across the entire NCA through a Group 
Executive Risk & Assurance Committee, with reporting through CO Management Boards, and Group 
Executive Development & Delivery Committee, with reporting from key strategic areas. 

Document Pack Page 21



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

4

Care Organisation

Each Care Organisation has its own robust governance and assurance framework, ensuring effective 
oversight from board to ward. Care Organisation Risk and Assurance Committees report into the CO 
Management Board and have 5 sub committees allowing for focus in all areas of the Care 
Organisations. Each division provides reporting in to the sub-committees. 

This Operational Plan builds on the key priorities identified in the 2017/18 Salford Royal and Pennine 
Acute Operational Plans, whilst refreshing and realigning priorities to realise the benefits that the 
Group structure enables. 

Salford Royal has had a CQC rating of outstanding since 2015 and was the first Trust in the North of 
England to achieve this status. The CQC are undertaking an inspection at the time of this submission. 
In August 2016 the CQC rated the services provided by The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust as 

Document Pack Page 22



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

5

inadequate. A detailed Pennine Acute Improvement Plan was put in place and was approved by the 
CQC and endorsed by the Pennine Improvement Board and PAT’s Board of Directors in October 
2016. 

The Improvement Plan addressed the CQC’s 77 ‘Must Dos’ and 144 ‘Should Dos’ which were noted in 
in the report and mapped these to 6 main improvement themes:

 Improving Fragile Services: stabilise Urgent Care, Maternity, Paediatric, Critical Care;
 Improving Quality; Improving Safety, Effectiveness, Patient Experience;
 Improving Risk & Governance: implement new risk & governance arrangements;
 Improving Operations & Performance: focus on improving data quality, patient flow systems, 

pathway management, models of care
 Improving Workforce and Safe Staffing: focus on staff recruitment and retention;
 Improving Leadership & Strategic Relations: clinical leadership development and 

strengthening local hospital operational management with new structures for each site.

In October and November 2017 the CQC returned to re-inspect services across Pennine and 
published their findings in March 2018, finding substantial improvements across the board. 70% of 
rateable acute hospital services have now been categorised as good or outstanding.

Fragile services addressed in the improvement plan were seen to have made significant progress: 
maternity services at both NMGH and ROH are now rated as good; and children’s services which 
were inadequate are now rated as requires improvement at both NMGH and ROH.

Of particular note is the Medical Service at FGH which has improved by 2 ratings from Requires 
Improvement to Outstanding. This rates the medical services at FGH, alongside the Salford Care 
Organisation, to be one of the best in Greater Manchester and amongst the best in the country.

A further area of substantial improvement was seen in the well led category, where the CQC rating 
improved two ratings from inadequate to good. This provides excellent feedback and validation to 
the Group arrangements that have been established to govern the Northern Care Alliance and Care 
Organisations.

The findings of the CQC inspection evidence the significant progress that has been made across the 
Pennine Care Organisations and the successful deployment of the Improvement Plan and the 
development of a Standard Operating Model across the NCA. This Operational Plan describes the 
way in which the Northern Care Alliance will continue to progress further and continue to improve 
patient outcomes. 

1.2 Link to the GM Devolution Plan and Locality Plans

The Northern Care Alliance Operational Plan for 2018/19 forms part of the delivery of the Northern 
Care Alliance Outline Clinical Services Strategy which brings together Salford, Bury, Oldham, 

Document Pack Page 23



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

6

Manchester and HMR locality plans and the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership 
STP – Taking Charge.   Those key components of the strategy are:  

• Work to improve the quality of care at PAHT and the wider NCA service strategy, such as the 
creation of ‘shared hospital services’ across the North East Sector (NES) and Salford (a population of 
c.1.2m).

• The Healthier Together programme (for which changes are being implemented for general 
surgery, emergency and acute medicine), which is now part of the wider GM Theme 3 Standardising 
acute and specialist care – one of five themes in the GM Strategic Plan.

• Local Commissioner plans which will see the creation of Local Care Organisations (LCOs) in 
each area, to better integrate health and social care, and designed to deliver significant reductions in 
acute hospital activity. This model will reflect the ICO model that already exists at the Salford Care 
Organisation. 

• The development of integrated commissioning, at local, NES and wider GM levels.

• Other programmes such as the GM Cancer Plan and the creation of a single hospital service 
for the City of Manchester.

Our vision is for the Northern Care Alliance acute Service Development Strategy to contribute 
significantly to the achievement of clinical, financial and workforce sustainability across all services. 
This will be delivered by:

I. Shifting more care into community settings, supporting population health and wellbeing – 
aligning with a health and care system that focuses more on prevention and early intervention.  
Successful implementation will reduce current reliance on acute care.

II. Delivering locally responsive and reliable acute care – which will be done through the 
leadership of each Care Organisation, linked to the LCOs/ICOs being created in each area.

III. Improving the quality, safety and reliability of acute services, which meet key standards – of 
commissioners, transformation programmes (such as GM Healthier Together) and national bodies, 
including NHS England, the NHS Constitution and assessment by regulators.

IV. Standardising care – providing a more coherent, consistent and productive model of service, 
by creating ‘single shared services’ across the Sector and for the wider NCA.

V. Improving financial sustainability – which for many specialties means bringing together 
services which are currently dispersed across the NCA, as well as achieving operational excellence 
(productive and efficient use of resources at all sites).

VI. Recruiting, retaining and supporting our workforce – who are able to deliver care to the 
standards required.

VII. Innovating and improving – using new technologies (especially digital) and structured 
improvement methods to change the way services are delivered and implement models of care that 
are proven to deliver benefits.

Document Pack Page 24



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

7

1.3 Northern Care Alliance and STP Governance

The GM STP, Locality Plans and the NCA Governance Frameworks have been put in place to provide 
assurance that performance standards are being achieved and strategic and transformation 
programmes are being delivered and coordinated at all levels. The current governance structures are 
summarised below. 

Greater Manchester

 Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Strategic Partnership Board and Executive
 Transformation Portfolio Board and supporting Groups & Delivery Boards
 Greater Manchester Provider Federation Board

Locality

 Salford, Bury, Manchester, Oldham and Rochdale Health and Well Being Boards
 North East Sector and Salford  Locality Leaders Group
 North East Sector Executive Group
 Locality Plan Programme Management Group
 Locality Plan Theme Boards

The Northern Care Alliance 

The Northern Care Alliance and the Care Organisations reflect any risks associated with the delivery 
of the Operational Plan through the Board Assurance Framework and supporting risk assessment 
processes. These are reviewed routinely through the Divisional and Care Organisation committee 
structures, with a strong escalation process to the NCA Group Risk and Assurance Committee. 

The Board Assurance Structure comprises an Audit Committee and a Group Risk and Assurance 
Committee.  Reporting to the Group Risk and Assurance Committee are four Care Organisation 
Management Boards.  The Care Organisation Management Boards are supported by local assurance 
committees in place within each Care Organisation which scrutinise key assurance mechanisms and 
independent reports. The assurance committees have a special focus on: clinical effectiveness, 
patient and staff experience, finance and information, academic affairs and, quality and safety.

Divisional Assurance and Risk Committees are also established and report directly to the Care 
Organisation Management Boards.

Assuring Delivery

The assurance of this plan will be supported through the establishment of a Group-wide Delivery 
Management Office (DMO).  The DMO will be responsible for:

 Alignment of change to our strategic objectives
 Prioritising changes to be delivered

Document Pack Page 25



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

8

 Aligning delivery across programmes and projects
 Challenging and supporting the delivery
 Ensuring transparency and control over delivery

The DMO portfolio management standards are based upon the nine domains of programme 
management:

Organisation &
Leadership

Vision

Blueprint

Projects

Planning &
ProgressComms

Quality

Risk

Benefits

Document Pack Page 26



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

9

1.4 Delivery Priorities

The Northern Care Alliance Plan has been refreshed to more appropriately reflect the needs of the 
local Care Organisation populations, whilst working together to meet the objectives and strategic 
benefits that must be delivered through the Northern Care Alliance:  

Priorities Objectives

Pursue Quality Improvement to 
assure safe, reliable and 

compassionate care

We will demonstrate continuous improvement towards our goal 
of being the safest health and social care organisations in 
England.

We will offer leadership, scale and technology to improve care 
and deliver the goals of our Care Organisations and their locality 
plans

We will develop Group Shared Services functions to deliver 
scale, resilience, operational excellence and transformation for 
our Care Organisations and partners

We will ensure a safe and sustainable future for the Care 
Organisations of Salford, Bury, Rochdale and Oldham and 
collaborate with the City of Manchester and NHSi to  secure the 
transition of North Manchester  

Improve care and services through 
integration, collaboration and 

growth

We will grow and strengthen the Northern Care Alliance to 
ensure a sustainable future for our populations served
We will demonstrate continuous improvement in operational  
and workforce productivity and efficiency

Deliver  the financial plan to assure 
sustainability We will work with partners to ensure financial plans are 

sustainable and deliver on our annual income and expenditure 
budgets

Support our staff to deliver high 
performance and continuous 

improvement

We will support staff to have rewarding, productive and 
fulfilling careers, enabling us to recruit and retain talented 
people.

Deliver Operational Excellence

We will ensure good operational planning and execution to 
    - Deliver on our urgent care, cancer and elective plans and 
trajectories 
    - Deploy relevant standard operating models
With our partners we will determine future models of care and 
a sustainable service configuration to ensure clinical and 
financial sustainability
Service productivity is improved through digital transformation 
and the delivery of automation, clinical decision support and 
patient/user activation products
We will invest and reconfigure our estate and facilities to enable 
the delivery of an efficient and productive environment which 
improves patient and care experience
We will reduce variation in care and improve experience
& outcomes through the development of our Standard 
Operating Model, our clinical reliability groups and the 
deployment of our quality and productivity improvement (QPID) 
methodology

Sa
vi

ng
 L

iv
es

, I
m

pr
ov

in
g 

Li
ve

s

Develop and Implement our Service 
Development Strategy and the NCA 

enabling strategies

Through excellence in change management and delivery of new 
ways of working we embed the changes resulting from our NCA 
strategies

Document Pack Page 27



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

10

2. ACTIVITY PLAN
2.1 Approach to Capacity & Demand

The annual activity plan reflects national activity submissions by month for 2017/18. An overlay to 
these figures has then been applied to take into account activity changes driven by demand growth 
assumptions, 2018/19 investments, and also includes Commissioners’ plans for the redesign or 
decommissioning of services.  These adjustments reconcile back to Pennine Acute’s 2018/19 signed 
contracts.

The activity projections impact on finance, workforce and contractual plans and have been 
triangulated.

Established policies and action plans are in place across the Northern Care Alliance to manage 
unplanned changes in demand. 

In 2018/19 the Northern Care Alliance will be introducing a capacity and demand modelling tool that 
will standardise the approach to modelling both activity and waiting time standards across Care 
Organisations.

This modelling tool will be implemented across the whole of the NCA NHS Group giving oversight 
and assurance to all Care Organisations and to Board. The implementation will take place during 
quarter one and will support the assurance function of managing and oversight of both the Annual 
Plan and the delivery of activity against the activity plan during the year.

The capacity and demand modelling tool will enable the NCA NHS Group and Care Organisations to 
model scenarios based on intelligence to look at the effect of capacity or demand pressures and 
easements on the profiled delivery of activity against plan. The modelling tool will also enable 
services to model waiting times and to see in advice the impact of pressure and demand changes on 
the delivery of waiting times over the year.  Aligning the capacity and demand activity against the 
service strategy will give the NCA NHS Group and commissioners  an early indication on the effect of 
in year fluctuations and seasonal variation on activity and will allow contractual activity to be 
mapped against actual demand and capacity and highlight the effect on waiting times of shortfalls.

The capacity and demand modelling tool will, once implemented, form part of the Standard 
Operating Model across the NCA NHS Group following a review of its effectiveness and benefits at 
the end of the 2018/19 financial year. 

Document Pack Page 28



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

11

3. QUALITY PLANNING 
3.1 Approach to Quality Improvement 

The Northern Care Alliance is committed to reaching the goal of being the safest health and social 
care organisation in England. This will be achieved through concerted effort across each Care 
Organisation supported by an aligned Quality Improvement (QI) Strategy. This Strategy is based on 
the framework agreed in the 2015-18 Salford QI Strategy; updated and refreshed for Pennine in 
2017. 

The Strategy has the full commitment of the Committees in Common and Care Organisations to 
support staff to make continued improvements. Delivery of the strategy is led by the Group Chief 
Nursing Officer and overseen by the Executive Quality and People Experience Committee. The NCA 
has a dedicated Quality Improvement team to support delivery of this strategy alongside the Care 
Organisations. 

The QI strategy is built on the knowledge that our staff are the best asset we have and we aim to 
provide the tools and space for learning, collaboration and improvement that will see our staff 
transform its services and improve outcomes. The strategy puts the needs of patients, their families 
and carers first, and as well as supporting the NCA priorities and the requirements of national and 
local plans. 

Quality outcomes are monitored through the NCA Assurance Framework, with a ‘Ward to Board’ 
approach of measurement, summarised through Divisions and Corporate Committees and with key 
measures and those being exception reported to the Care Organisation Assurance and Risk 
Committee and Group Assurance and Risk Committee. The outcomes evidence the impact in the 
quality improvement approach.

The strategy identifies five clear aims:

The QI strategy has 4 clear aims:

1. No preventable deaths
2. Continuously seek out and reduce patient harm
3. Achieve the highest level of reliability for clinical care
4. Deliver innovative and integrated care close to home which supports and improves health, 

wellbeing and independent living. 

The achievement of these aims will be delivered through the NCA improvement methodology and 
will be supported by a number of drivers:

 Leadership & culture
 Capability building & staff engagement
 Safety & Quality projects
 Operational Excellence

The programme will also support:

 Maintaining NHSLA standards.
 Meeting CQC standards.

Document Pack Page 29



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

12

 Meeting the National Safety standards for invasive procedures (NatSSIPs).
 Implementation of the mortality review board requirements.
 Meeting Quality Governance requirements.
 National Clinical Audits
 CQUINs
 Working towards 7 day and safe staffing levels
 Infection prevention and control  and anti-microbial resistance
 Improving responsiveness to deteriorating patients
 Delivering reliable ward rounds

The Quality Strategy provides ongoing focus on delivery of the national safety thermometer 
indicators and compliance with assessment standards. Supporting reduction across the NCA of:

 Acute catheter days
 Acute CaUTI (Catheter associated infections)
 Catheters in the community
 Grade 2 pressure ulcers (and elimination of grade 3 & 4)
 Falls
 VTE

As a key priority in 2018/19 Care Organisations will continue working towards implementation of 7 
day working across the locality, with a specific focus at Salford Care Organisation on supporting the 
emergency village and community based out of hours care, moving towards the standards set out 
for Major Trauma and Healthier Together.

Work is also ongoing to implement the quick sepsis related organ failure assessment to all inpatient 
areas to improve early recognition of sepsis. 

Through the Quality Improvement strategy we aim to lower our mortality rates and ensure that 
fewer patients experience harm whilst in our care across the NCA. One of the ways to reduce harm 
and lower mortality rates is to study the care pathways of those patients who have died so that 
lessons can be learned to improve care. Whilst it is rare that we encounter a case where death could 
have been prevented, the review of most patient pathways can teach us valuable lessons about 
improving care. 

All Northern Care Alliance Care Organisations are preparing systems and tools to support the 
identification of cases for independent Structured Judgement Review (SJR) methodology mortality 
reviews, and cascading training to add capacity and resilience to the mortality review process. In 
addition to increasing the number of mortality reviews completed the Care Organisations are 
working to demonstrate assurance that Mortality and Morbidity meetings are effective places of 
learning.

In order to support effective learning from deaths, learning and education must be multifaceted and 
diverse to reach busy operational staff.  To support the essential changes in how we deliver learning 
particularly around improving patient safety a new intranet Learning Environment is being 
developed with the support of the Communications Team.  To share good practice and address 
incident and mortality themes, a Patient Care Alert system is being tested with positive feedback 

Document Pack Page 30



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

13

already received.  To compliment this also under development is an NCA version of the successful 
Take 5 learning methodology kindly shared by The Royal Perth Bentley Group and the Government 
of Western Australia East Metropolitan Health Services.

Reducing healthcare acquired infections (HCAI’s) including blood stream infections (BSI’s) is a clear 
patient safety issue and remains at the heart of improvement and innovations within the Infection 
Prevention service and strategy of the Northern Care Alliance.  Reducing avoidable HCAI’s promotes 
a more positive patient experience and also impacts on reducing the need to prescribe 
antimicrobials, a key component in reducing the rise in antibiotic resistance. As part of our strategy 
for 2018/19, the NCA will implement internal reduction targets with improved benchmarking and 
performance monitoring, along with a root cause analysis process to ensure lessons learned are 
identified and shared. Specific work will be undertaken to develop an improved hand hygiene 
strategy, along with work with GM and nationally to support the urinary tract infections 
collaborative. The NCA will also be working closely with our community providers to implement 
standardised infection prevention strategies. 

3.2 Summary of the Quality Impact Assessment process 

An NCA wide Quality Impact Assessment (QIA) process has been developed, ensuring adherence to 
National Quality Board requirements.

Business cases and project initiation documents prompt staff involved in developing schemes to 
consider the following:

 Patient safety (e.g. patient satisfaction, complaints, waiting times).
 Clinical effectiveness (e.g. safety thermometer, patient satisfaction).
 Patient experience (e.g. complaints, satisfaction).
 Staff experience (e.g. turnover/sickness absence).
 Equality and Diversity (e.g. waiting times/LOS).
 Targets/Performance (e.g. all of the above and the wider range in the performance 

framework).

Each QIA is scored, reviewed, and signed off at an appropriate divisional meeting with medical / 
nursing representation. All QIAs scoring 3 and above are escalated for review by Care Organisation 
Directors at their weekly meeting, in the presence of either the Medical or Nursing Director.  Non-
clinical divisional projects i.e. Corporate Functions, Workforce, Procurement, Estates and Facilities 
and ICO are reviewed at their steering group meeting. The Steering Group Chair determines if 
medical and/or nurse review is required.

Where appropriate risk assessments are added to Datix (the risk management system) to provide 
additional assurance that risks are being managed appropriately. Processes are in place to monitor, 
through the Divisional and Corporate assurance committees and performance reports the impact of 
service changes. 

Document Pack Page 31



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

14

An overview of performance is maintained through routine performance reports and using quality 
improvement measurement to ensure any significant trends are identified over time. Specific KPIs 
are identified associated with specific work streams and these are monitored at a local level. KPIs 
include those relating to Adult Social Care and Mental Health services.

Three times a year a QIA review is presented to the Finance and Information Committees (where 
performance of the efficiency programme is reported). This constitutes two parts:

 A quality check of a random selection of PIDs to assess the appropriateness of QIA scoring 
being applied; and

 Cumulative impact of PIDs to identify where staff groups or departments could be under 
strain due to a high number of change projects within a group or department.

3.3 Summary of triangulation of quality with workforce and finance 

The NCA assurance processes consist of monitoring at Service, Division and at Committee level. 
Quarterly Divisional Assurance and Risk Committees within Care Organisations provide an 
opportunity to review services as a whole and triangulate quality, workforce and financial indicators.

The outcomes of divisional committees are reported to the Care Organisation Risk and Assurance 
Committee, with risks scored over 10 reported onwards to the Group Risk and Assurance Committee 
and Committees in Common.

Document Pack Page 32



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

15

4. WORKFORCE PLANNING 

The NCA has put significant effort into developing workforce plans that focus on:
 Addressing workforce gaps, including areas where there are national or local shortages of 

staff and/or dependence on non-contract staff.
 Workforce redesign to support new models of care, including review of skill mix and 

achievement of productivity improvements.
 Planning for strategic service developments.

The Workforce template submission details an increase in the whole time equivalent staffing in 
2018/19. This position reflects the baseline of staff in post in 2017/18 which is under the funded 
establishment and the plans to replace waiting list initiative funded capacity, locum, bank and 
agency staff and reduce the outsourcing of activity with a Pennine employed establishment. The 
plans also reflect the remodelling of the workforce, with new roles, and addressing the requirements 
of strategic programmes.

The NCA supports the training and development of trainee Advanced Clinical Practitioners and 
Trainee Nurse Associates.

4.1 Methodology, engagement and governance

As part of the development of the workforce plan, the Skills for Health six step model has been used 
to inform the Health Education North West (HENW) commissioning numbers and human resources 
colleagues have engaged with local partners through participation in the Locality Workforce group 
meetings.

Divisional Managing Directors and their teams have been involved in the development of ongoing 
workforce strategies for their Divisions to complement the high level People Strategy that had been 
developed following wide consultation with service colleagues and staff organisations and approved 
by the Board of Directors. Divisional workforce plans considered demand and local and national 
quality standards including 7 day working.

Each Care Organisation has established a Workforce & OD Committee which reports through the 
assurance framework into COARC and the Care Organisation’s Management Board.  The terms of 
reference of the Workforce & OD Committee have been agreed within each Care Organisation and 
membership includes senior divisional leaders, finance and workforce colleagues.

Finance, service managers and HRBPs work collaboratively on workforce and service planning and 
any plans for reductions in the workforce are considered by the Medical Director and Nurse Director, 
in respect of impact on quality of services. 

The temporary staffing function is managed through the workforce function but located within 
Divisions in order to provide a more responsive approach to meeting temporary staff needs. Weekly 
monitoring of agency use is undertaken and rules for agency use established.  The NCA has worked 
with NHS Professionals (NHSP) on nursing staffing since 2016 and began to utilise NHSP Doctors in 
December 2017 and are working with NHSP on bank building and agency migration for this group.  
The NCA is a member of the APP collaboration with NHSP and is working to reduce nursing agency 

Document Pack Page 33



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

16

use, in part through work done within that group on agency rates and collaboration on agency 
migration across NHSP partners in GM.

Work to review skill mix internally will be undertaken through the use of the Trendcare system, 
which is in the process of being fully integrated across all Care Organisations, whilst this is initially for 
nursing staff it will be rolled out to cover other staff groups. Work is underway across the North East 
Sector on the workforce implications of Healthier Together and workforce modelling has been 
undertaken to inform the requirement of a surgical service centred in the Oldham Care 
Organisation. The NCA is also engaged in the wider service reconfiguration discussions within 
Greater Manchester and will be transferring the community services provided out of North 
Manchester into the Manchester LCO from the 1st July 2018.  The NCA also plans to take back in 
house domestic services from 1st August 2018.

E–rostering is in place for nursing and there are plans to utilise the Doctors Rostering system (DRS 
Realtime) across each of the Care Organisations.  Service reviews looking at agency and premium 
spend are being undertaken by Finance, Workforce and service management colleagues.  Work is 
ongoing with Inpatria to employ overseas doctors who are currently in the country and also with 
other Trusts in GM and with commercial providers on overseas recruitment. Work is underway 
across the NCA to recruit nurses from India.

A Job plan of 9 direct clinical care (DCC) sessions to 1 Supporting professional Activity (SPA) session is 
standard within the Trust with any additional SPAs being evidenced.  Electronic job planning is being 
rolled out across the trust and work on a common job planning policy is underway with colleagues 
across the NCA.

There has been limited opportunity to utilise the apprenticeship levy since it came into effect in 
2017 although going forwards newly qualified nurses will undertake a customer service 
apprenticeship and the levy will be used to fund advance practitioner training as appropriate higher 
apprenticeships become available.  Managers are working on the Carter recommendations on 
administrative services, pharmacy, radiology and pathology. Shared corporate functions are now in 
place across the NCA and work continues on developing and achieving efficiencies from those shared 
corporate services. 

It is not expected that the change to bursaries will impact on staffing in the current planning period. 
The impact of Brexit on the workforce is not yet clear although we would anticipate this would not 
be significant, due to the numbers of European staff employed. We recognise that impact elsewhere 
could affect workforce supply and impact on the NCA through a tightening of the labour market.

The NCA is working on the NHSI nursing retention collaborative programme.

4.2 Support and develop our people to deliver safe, clean and personal 
care

Significant work has taken place to improve the induction experience for new starters and a new 
NCA induction process has been established. This is followed up with a survey and meeting with the 
Associate Director of L&OD to gain feedback early into their careers so that processes are kept under 
review and any issues identified.

Document Pack Page 34



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

17

The Contribution Framework ‘appraisal’ system is under review with the support of external 
specialists RDL and a revised scheme will be launched in 2018. Our aim is to increase compliance to 
95% by the end of 2018/19 and also to improve the perceived value that the process adds 

The content of all leadership programmes are being reviewed across the Northern Care Alliance to 
ensure they meet the needs of individuals and the organisation. 

In anticipation of significant changes for the NCA (and across partner organisations) over the next 
few years, we are also implementing a formal Organisational Development Change methodology to 
ensure we fully engage and support our people during this period.

The NCA remains committed to deliver, through the QI team, courses to develop capability in QI 
methodology.

4.3 Improve engagement with and the wellbeing of our people

Significant work has taken place to improve communications and general engagement with our staff. 
This includes:

 Weekly Trust newsletters
 Team Talk
 Cascade team briefing
 Prioritisation of staff engagement in the objectives of senior leaders
 1000 voices events
 Use of the “go engage” methodology through the Pioneer Programme

Significant work has taken place to ensure we provide proactive and reactive services to enable us to 
have amongst the healthiest and best attending workforce in our sector. 

5. CARE ORGANISATION PRIORITIES

Each Care Organisation has a detailed plan for delivering the priorties outlined in section 1.  Below 
are detailed some examples of the areas the Care Organisations are addressing (please note these 
are examples not a comprehensive list):

Priorities Bury and Rochdale Care organisation

Sa
vi

n
g 

Li
ve

s,
 

Pursue Quality Improvement to 
assure safe, reliable and 

compassionate care

Improvements in corre patient and user harms
Improve pressure ulcer prevention
Reduce falls by 10%
Achieve 95% A&E 4 hour target
Improve diabetes care

Document Pack Page 35



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

18

Improve care and services through 
integration, collaboration and 

growth

Deliver transformation schemes in accordance with HMR and 
Bury’s locality plan including spending avoidable time in 
hospitals
Roll out homeless  events at FGH (similar to Rochdale Infirmary)
Commence internships for people with learning difficulties

Deliver  the financial plan to assure 
sustainability

Deliver improved recruitment processes 
Reduce sickness absence levels
Reduce agency spend

Support our staff to deliver high 
performance and continuous 

improvement

Deliver improved communications and response rates
Deliver staff engagement forums
All staff to have clear objectives agreed

Deliver Operational Excellence

Develop standard operating models
Improve cancer and planned care trajectories
Implement mental health re-attendance to reduce waiting 
times and patient experience

I m p r o v i n g  L i v e s

Develop and Implement our Service 
Development Strategy and the NCA 

enabling strategies

Complete GIRFT recommendations for orthopaedics (national 
audit)

Priorities Oldham Care Organisation

Pursue Quality Improvement to 
assure safe, reliable and 

compassionate care

Deliver QI (quality improvement) strategy to reduce falls, 
harms, pressure ulcers and infections
Reduce number of patient safety issues
Deliver CQC in order to improve CQC  rating

Improve care and services through 
integration, collaboration and 

growth

Develop care pathways with key partners to reduce time in 
acute settings
Contribute to health and well-being in each locality
Deliver healthier together plan for high acuity services

Deliver  the financial plan to assure 
sustainability

Improve theatre utilisation
Improve workforce planning processes
Improve compliance for mandatory training

Support our staff to deliver high 
performance and continuous 

improvement

Implement talent management programme
Implement medical engagement programme
Implement development programme for B6 and B staff (future 
leaders)

Deliver Operational Excellence

Implement regular review of stranded patients
Improve urgent care pathways with partners
Develop standard operating models

Sa
vi

ng
 L

iv
es

, I
m

pr
ov

in
g 

Li
ve

s

Develop and Implement our Service 
Development Strategy and the NCA 

enabling strategies

Support the development of the clinical services strategy
Implement QI (quality improvement methodology)

Priorities North Manchester Care Organisation

S a

Pursue Quality Improvement to 
assure safe, reliable and 

compassionate care

Improvements in core patient and user harms
Implement change packages to improve patient outcomes – 
deteriorating patient, pressure ulcers, PJ paralysis, last 100 
days)
Reduce harm to patients by improved pathways of care for 

Document Pack Page 36



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

19

sepsis, diabetes, etc

Improve care and services through 
integration, collaboration and 

growth

Support aims of commissioners for reduced avoidable time in 
hospital
Deliver recruitment and retention programme
Deliver volunteer programme to increase numbers of 
volunteers

Deliver  the financial plan to assure 
sustainability

Reduce vacancies through recruitment and retention 
programme
Deliver improved financial performance

Support our staff to deliver high 
performance and continuous 

improvement

Deliver team briefings/open surgeries to improve 
communication
Deliver on training, coaching and talent development plan

Deliver Operational Excellence

Improve capacity and demand planning
Further develop AMU model in urgent care to meet demand of 
short-stay patients
Develop frailty offer to patients

v i n g  L i v e s ,  I m p r o v i n g  L i v e s

Develop and Implement our Service 
Development Strategy and the NCA 

enabling strategies

Deliver improved programme/project management
Utilise QI methodology in plans (quality improvement)
Support delivery of IM and T strategy

Document Pack Page 37



The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 2018/19 Operational Plan

20

Document Pack Page 38



North East Sector 

Transformation:

“A Shared Hospital Service, 

for our shared population”

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 39
A

genda Item
 10



This presentation summarises the emerging proposals that will need to be 

refined and formally reviewed as part of the development of the North East 

Sector (NES) acute Clinical Service Strategy.  In particular, it describes:

• The needs of the NES population, the existing acute commissioning 

intentions and the key drivers for change within the sector

• A summary of the NES hospital sites and the associated issues that will need 

to be considered as the Strategy is refined

• Agreed fixed points and where decisions may be contingent on Theme 3

• The proposed approach to service transformation and cost reduction

• The agreed option appraisal framework and evaluation criteria

• The timeline and steps for finalising the NES acute Service Strategy

2

Purpose of the presentation

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 40



This presentation brings together and builds on considerable work undertaken by NES 

commissioners, in conjunction with the NCA, over the last 12 months or so to develop 

a strategy to secure clinically and financially sustainable acute services.  

• There is a significant burning platform for change in Bury, Rochdale & Oldham. 

• Our combined population has significantly poorer health outcomes than the rest of 

the UK. This is why we are investing in prevention and community based care, and 

integrating care through our Locality Care Organisations.

• Despite real improvements in quality, the current configuration of hospital services 

within the Pennine footprint is not sustainable (mirroring the position in GM and 

beyond) and therefore significant change is required.

• Our strategy is to develop a ‘Shared Hospital Service’ uniting Oldham, Bury and 

Rochdale (and associated with Salford and the NW sector as appropriate), ensuring 

our population can access resilient and financially sustainable services.

• Commissioning have already identified those services that should delivered from 

within Oldham, Bury and Rochdale (or, where this is not possible, be easily accessible 

for our population). As part of the development of this strategy, commissioning 

intentions are being refreshed and will be updated.
3

Our platform for change 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 41



Excluding North Manchester, the NES has a direct population 

of c.687,000 with three commissioning CCGs, 25% of GM:

§ NHS Bury CCG

30 GP practices serving a population of 203,000

§ NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG 

36 GP practices serving 231,000 people

§ NHS Oldham CCG 

44 GP practices serving a population of 253,000

PAHT is the primary provider of district general services to 

the populations of Oldham, Bury and Rochdale

The three hospital sites also serve a wider catchment,  incl. 

Bolton, East Lancashire, Tameside, and North Manchester

Our population (1)

4

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 42



Our strategy must support addressing health inequalities and variable 

outcomes associated with the wider determinants of health

Our population (2)

5

Combined population of 687,000 Rochdale Oldham Bury National

% of population living in the two most deprived quintiles 72% (+32%) 59% (+19%) 40% (0%) 40%

Life expectancy years – male 77.1 (-2.4) 77.0 (-2.5) 77.9 (-1.6) 79.5

Life expectancy years – female 80.6 (-2.5) 80.5 (-2.6) 81.6 (-1.5) 83.1

Healthy life expectancy years – male 57.8 (-5.5) 59.1 (-4.2) 58.5 (-4.8) 63.3

Healthy life expectancy years – female 58.7 (-5.2) 60.7 (-3.2) 62.2 (-1.7) 63.9

Smoking related deaths per 100,000 population 398 (+126) 377 (+105) 329 (+57) 272

% of the population that are from ethnic minorities 20% (+7%) 21% (+8%) 11% (-2%) 13%

Children living in low income families 27% (+7%) 29% (+9%) 19% (-1%) 20%

Obese children in Year 6 21% (+1%) 22% (+2%) 20% (0%) 20%

20% most deprived boroughs in England √ √

GCSE attainment significantly worse than England 

average
√ √

% of Health summary indicators significantly worse than 

England average
50% 54% 25%

Note: percentage difference to national average in brackets. Red text denotes a position worse than the national average.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 43



§ The Sector is working to achieve clinical, financial and workforce sustainability for all 

services by 2020/21. The intention is to deliver care closer to home, maximising the 

use of all estate within the 3 CCG / LA co-terminus footprint. 

§ NES Transformation reflects local priorities and plans, including the creation of LCOs 

in each area and strengthening community support to provide a resilient, responsive 

offer in both the statutory and voluntary sector. 

§ In terms of acute care, commissioners have set out their initial intentions for: 

§ General Surgery, Breast Service, Trauma and Orthopaedics, Urology, Oral and 

Maxillofacial Surgery, Paediatric ENT and Paediatric Oral Surgery , Specialist 

Respiratory Care, Diagnostic & Nuclear Medicine and Vascular Services.

Services should delivered from within the localities of Oldham, Bury and Rochdale 

or, where this is not possible, be easily accessible for our population.

§ Focus of the acute service commissioning strategy is to support the development of 

resilient, high quality shared hospital services, aligned with community and 

voluntary sector services, that support end-to-end care.

§ Consistent with GM Strategic Plan, with a focus on ensuring services meet or exceed 

quality and safety standards. Engagement and alignment with Theme 3.

Clinical and commissioning drivers

6

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 44



7

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 45



Transformation of urgent 

and emergency care 

Integrated elective 

pathways, transformation 

of outpatients and 

ambulatory care

Population health 

approach

Cohesive, integrated care 

within each Locality

Reforming primary and 

mental health care 

Essential acute services 

provided and accessible 

as locally as possible

A Shared Hospital 

Service

- uniting Oldham, Bury 

and Rochdale

(associated with Salford 

and the NW sector as 

appropriate)

Key Themes and Priorities

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 46



• 62% of workforce live in Rochdale.

• Reconfigured as part of Healthy Futures.

• Urgent care centre, clinical assessment 

unit, outpatients and some inpatients.

• 23-hour day case provision. 

• Ophthalmology centre for NES, 

Rheumatology investigations unit.

• Nationally recognised integrated 

community teams, innovative 

rehabilitation service with intermediate 

care and the OASIS dementia unit. 

Key implications for the strategy

§ Already significantly reconfigured

§ Build on existing model of care to 

support integration within the LCO

§ Increase usage of good ambulatory 

facilities (e.g. day case) and alleviate 

site pressures at ROH

107 beds; 3,100 inpatient spells; 25,600 day cases; 107,250 outpatients;  

51,000 attendances at the Urgent Care Centre

9

Rochdale Infirmary

8.85%

65.77%

8.23%

2.98%

3.15%
11.02%

Rochdale Infirmary activity split

Bury CCG

HMR CCG

Oldham CCG

Manchester CCG

NHS England

Other

NES = 83%

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 47



Key implications for the strategy

§ Medical acuity and combined Bury and 

Rochdale catchment

§ Retain and expand existing specialties: 

Stroke, ENT, Orthopaedics and 

Rehabilitation

§ Increase use of good facilities (e.g. 

theatres) for planned care

294 beds; 21,500 inpatient spells; 13,850 day cases; 101,000 outpatients;

71,500 A&E attendances

10

Fairfield General Hospital

• 42% of workforce live in Bury.

• Significantly reconfigured under 

Healthy Futures.

• Very busy, high ambulance usage 

receiving site for medical take serving 

Rochdale and Bury.  

• Medical and elective surgery. Limited 

acute surgery - treat & transfer.

• Specialises in Stroke, Cardiology, ENT 

and Orthopaedics, providing these 

services for PAHT as a whole.

• Medicine noted as outstanding in 

October 2017 CQC report. 

55.14%28.41%

4.57%

3.55%

1.71%

6.62%

Fairfield activity split

Bury CCG

HMR CCG

Oldham CCG

Manchester CCG

NHS England

Other

NES = 87%

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 48



Fairfield: high patient acuity

Total 

Ambulance 

arrivals

Resus / V 

Urgent & 

Urgent

% of 

Site 

total

% of 

trust 

total

FGH 24,084 21,345 89% 33%

NMGH 25,347 16,535 65% 26%

ROH 31,089 26,662 86% 41%

Fig 2  Acuity of A&E attendances by site in NES 2017/18

Fig 1 Type of Ambulance attendances to each site in NES 2017/18

11

Total A&E 

attendances

Major & Resus 

A&E 

attendances

% of 

Site 

total

% of trust 

total

FGH 70,077 42,088 60% 39%

NMGH 101,414 32,930 32% 30%

ROH 105,967 33,970 32% 31%

• Fairfield has a large 

volume of A&E activity and 

serves both Bury and 

Rochdale

• It has a much greater 

proportion of major and 

resus attendances than 

other NES A&E 

departments

• The acuity of ambulance 

attendances are 

comparable to Royal 

Oldham though the case-

mix is predominantly 

medical / frail elderly

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 49



• 46% workforce live in Oldham.

• Designated Healthier Together 

hub site for the NES, plus NMGH. 

Planned increase in General Surgery 

emergency and high-risk patients. 

• Maternity and level 3 Neonatal 

intensive care services. 

• Key site supporting integrated 

paediatric pathways across NES. 

• Centralised Pathology for PAHT.

• Vascular Surgery for NES and GM.

• Christie @ Oldham, Victoria Breast 

Care Unit, and Maggies Oldham 

services provided from ROH.

Key implications for the strategy

§ Full implementation of HT

§ Urology support for HT pathways

§ Development of IR services  - high acuity 

§ Potential relocation of catheter lab to 

support high acuity services

§ Major capital development on the site

581 beds; 42,300 inpatient spells; 19,650 day cases; 132,500 outpatients; 

107,000 A&E attendances; 4,950 births

12

Royal Oldham

3.35%

20.07%

63.62%

4.32%

1.42%
7.22%

Royal Oldham

Bury CCG

HMR CCG

Oldham CCG

Manchester CCG

NHS England

Other

NES = 87%

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 50



22.28%

17.19%

6.21%

39.37%

3.23%
11.72%

NMGH activity split

Bury CCG

HMR CCG

Oldham CCG

Manchester CCG

NHS England

Other

NES = 46%

NES activity at NMGH site

13

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 51



Fixed points Site affected Services affected

Retain 3 sites in NES All sites link to LCOs

Healthier Together Royal Oldham Hospital High Risk Elective General 

and Colorectal Surgery 

GM Hyper Acute Stroke 

Unit Designation

Fairfield General Hospital  Inpatient Stroke 

Making It Better -

Paediatrics and Maternity 

designation

Royal Oldham Hospital Emergency paediatric 

pathways, 

Maternity

Healthy Futures -

Rochdale Infirmary 

Service Changes

Rochdale Infirmary A&E and Acute Surgery 

14

Existing fixed points for NES sites

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 52



15

NES and Theme 3 

NES Commissioners and the NCA fully support the Theme 3, with a number of 

services are under review which  may impact on the NES hospitals.

Theme 3 area Sites that could be affected Likely nature of proposals

Breast Services Royal Oldham and NMGH Reconfiguration

Benign Urology NMGH and all NES sites Reconfiguration

Cardiology All sites Enhanced standards

Critical Care All sites except Rochdale Infirmary Enhanced standards

Neuro-Rehabilitation Birch Hill hospital Reconfiguration

Orthopaedics Rochdale Infirmary and NMGH Reconfiguration

Paediatrics Royal Oldham Hospital Enhanced standards

Respiratory All sites Enhanced standards

Vascular Services Royal Oldham Consolidation within GM

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 53



Integrated digital 

record linking 

each hospital site 

and our LCOs

Optimise use of 

combined estate, 

rationalising 

expensive assets 

(such as theatres)

Development of 

dedicated high 

acuity facility on 

the ROH site

Development of 

roles of and for 

GPs, outreach role 

for hospital 

physicians, new 

roles

Development of 

NCA Training 

Academy

Transformation of 

the outpatient 

model using 

technology and 

shared decision-

making
Digital

Workforce Estates

Opportunities 

for local 

workforce

Reliable, 

standardised 

clinical pathways 

across every 

location
Quality 

improvement in 

everything we do

Clinical

16

Transformation through shared hospital services D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 54



Productivity

Activity reduction 

and setting shifts

Capital

Maximise theatre utilisation

Move to lower cost 

settings

Reduce estate costs

Consolidation of 

inpatient surgery

‘Single service’ approach 

to reduce reliance on

premium workforce

Reduction in LOS

Improve use of 

existing estate to 

avoid capital costs

Prevent creation of 

stranded costs when 

reconfigure

17

Approach to reducing costs*

Contributing to £98M savings over the next five years, recognising that a 

proportionate share will be the responsibility of the City of Manchester for NMGH 

Reduction in unnecessary 

attendances and admissions

Diagnostic pathway 

review

EUR processes

High cost drug gain 

share

*incorporating the agreed Service Development & Improvement Plan schemes

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 55



Fairfield General Hospital 

Acute medical site

+ elective surgery centre

link to stroke and neurosciences

Royal Oldham Hospital

High acuity site

+ emergency and high risk surgery

Salford Royal

High acuity site

Major Trauma Centre

+ emergency and high risk surgery

Rochdale Infirmary

+ + Day surgery centre

Key site 

features

18

GM archetype 3

GM archetype 5

GM archetype 4

NES archetype

High level site strategy: building blocks

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 56



All 

options

Understand constraints, such 

as Healthier Together which 

reduce options

Apply 

Evaluation 

Criteria

Options for 

formal 

consultation

Agree core 

hospital 

functions

Agreed process for generating & narrowing 

down service configuration options

Each step agreed though NES Programme

governance structures
19

Option appraisal process

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 57



Criteria Sub-criteria

5
Deliverability ▪ Expected time to deliver ▪ Ease of delivering change within 5 years

▪ Co-dependencies with other 

strategies

▪ Alignment with other strategic changes (e.g. STP, any other national and local NHS 

strategies) and provides a flexible platform for the future

3

Affordability 

and value for 

money
▪ Transition costs ▪ One off costs (excl. capital & receipts) to implement changes

▪ Meets regulatory requirements ▪ E.g. Surpluses generated by Foundation Trusts

▪ Capital cost to the system ▪ Capital requirement to achieve required capacity & quality

▪ Net present value ▪ Total value of each potential option incorporating future capital and revenue/cost 

implications and compared on like-for-like basis

1

Quality of care 

for all
▪ Clinical effectiveness

▪ Improved delivery against clinical and constitutional standards, access to skilled 

staff and specialist equipment, comparison of current clinical quality of sites

▪ Patient and carer experience
▪ Improved patient and carer experience with excellent communication & good estate

▪ Safety ▪ Expected impact on excess mortality, serious untoward incidents

2

Access to care 

for all

▪ Distance and time to access 

services

▪ Impact on population weighted average travel times (blue light, off-peak car, peak 

car, public transport) to reflect average impact for emergency and elective 

treatment and total impact  for more isolated populations

▪ Patient choice

▪ Provides patients with choice in line with their rights in the NHS constitution

▪ Service operating hours ▪ Ability of model to facilitate 7 day working and improved access to care out of hours

Description

4

Workforce ▪ Scale of impact
▪ Potential impact on current staff and retraining required

▪ Sustainability
▪ Likelihood to be sustainable from a workforce perspective, facilitating 7 day working 

and addresses any other recruitment challenges
▪ Impact on local workforce

▪ Potential impact on staff attrition due to change

▪ Supports integration and co-ordination of pathways with community and primary 

care

▪ Improved delivery and reduce variation in patient outcomes and health inequalities

▪ Supports new workforce models which reflect new ways of working and education 

and training needs.

20

Evaluation criteria

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 58



21

Essential meeting and governance 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29

NES Executive Group

NES Programme Board

Clinical oversight group (COG)

Finance Reference Group (FERG)

(Transaction Board)

Steps to strategy

Revisit the Case for Change

Refine evaluation criteria

Describe potential clinical models

Short-list of service configuration options

Analysis to support evaluation

Evaluate options and write up

Enngagement activities

Approvals

September OctoberJune July August

Figure 1 describes both the revised timescales, governance points and stages to 

development of a strategy which can demonstrate clinical and financial sustainability.

NES timeline and steps

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	7 STAFFING UPDATE
	8 FINANCE UPDATE
	9 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
	10 UPDATE ON THE NORTHERN CARE ALLIANCE

